
Agenda 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Morton, Illinois 

Monday, July 6, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON, ILLINOIS 

MONDAY, JULY 6, 2020 – 7:00 P.M. 
 

REMOTE ONLY MEETING 
 

LINK TO JOIN ZOOM MEETING: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6288284611 
 

PHONE DIAL-IN OPTION: 

DIAL (312) 626-6799      MEETING ID: 628 828 4611 # 

 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 

II.  ROLL CALL 

III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

IV.  PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Public Hearing on a Proposal to Exchange 208 E. Tyler St for 530 N. Second Ave., Morton IL. 

B. Public Hearing on a Proposal to Exchange 17 Acres +/- of Unimproved Land on Harding Road for 445 E. 

Birchwood St., Morton IL. 

V.  PRESENTATIONS AND SPECIAL REPORTS 

VI.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

A. Public Comments 

B. Requests for Removal of Items from the Consent Agenda 

VII.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting – June 15, 2020 

2. Special Meeting – June 22, 2020 

B. Approval of Bills. 

VIII.  CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 

IX.  VILLAGE PRESIDENT 

A. Resolution 02-21 – A Resolution Approving Real Estate Exchange Agreement between Morton 

Community Unit School District No. 709 and the Village of Morton. 

B. Ordinance 21-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Exchange of 208 E. Tyler St. for 530 N. Second Ave 

Morton IL. 

C. Ordinance 21-08 – An Ordinance Authorizing Exchange of 17 Acres +/- of Unimproved Land on Harding 

Road for 445 E. Birchwood St., Morton IL. 

X.  VILLAGE CLERK 

XI.  VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 

XII.  CHIEF OF POLICE 

A. Resolution 03-21 - A Resolution Appointing Jason Miller to Governing Board of Tazewell Consolidated 

Communications Center. 

XIII.  CORPORATION COUNSEL  

XIV.  DIRECTOR OF FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES 

XV.  DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

A. Waive Formal Bidding and Acceptance of Proposal from Wayne Litwiller Excavating, Inc. for the 

Demolishing of 209, 213, 217, and 221 E. Harrison St. (August '20) and 530 N. Second Ave. (Sept. ’20) in 

the Amount of $77,800.00 (Backfilling by Others). 

XVI. ZONING AND CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 

A. Zoning Amendment Petition #20-03 ZA – Harding Rd. 

  



Agenda 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Morton, Illinois 

Monday, July 6, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 

XVII. VILLAGE TRUSTEES 

A. Trustee Blunier 

B. Trustee Leitch 

C. Trustee Leman 

D. Trustee Menold 

E. Trustee Newman  

F. Trustee Parrott 

XVIII. CLOSED SESSIONS 

XIX.  CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSIONS  

XX.  ADJOURNMENT 



VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 

7:00 P.M., JUNE 15, 2020 

 

After calling the meeting to order, President Kaufman led the Pledge of Allegiance. The Clerk 

(Administrator Smick - Acting Clerk) called the roll, with the following members present: 

Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman – 5.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING – None. 

   

PRESENTATIONS – None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT – Leigh Ann Brown from the Morton Chamber of Commerce and 

Economic Development Council gave an update noting 4th Friday events coming up on Friday, 

June 26 and also the Morton Chamber of Commerce Golf Outing/Fundraiser on July 10. 

  

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Minutes. 

1. Special Meeting – May 28, 2020 

2. Regular Meeting – June 1, 2020 

B. Approval of Bills 

Trustee Leitch moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion was seconded by Trustee Leman 

and approved with the following roll call vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman – 5. 

No: None. 

Absent: Parrott – 1. 

   

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR 

Trustee Leitch presented a Building Improvement Grant Recommendation for Morton 

Community Foundation for $9,143 for a project with a projected cost of $18,285 for code-related 

interior and exterior improvements. Trustee Newman moved to approve. Motion was seconded 

by Trustee Blunier and approved with the following roll call vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman – 5. 

No: None. 

Absent: Parrott – 1. 

   

CORPORATION COUNSEL 

Attorney McGrath presented Ordinance 21-06 – An Ordinance Setting a Public Hearing on a 

Proposal to Exchange 208 E. Tyler St. for 530 N. Second Ave., Morton IL. Trustee Leitch 

moved to approve. Motion was seconded by Trustee Leman and approved with the following roll 

call vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman, Kaufman – 6. 

No: None. 

Absent: Parrott – 1. 

 

  



DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

DPW Loudermilk presented Ordinance 21-05 – An Ordinance Setting a Public Hearing on a 

Proposal to Exchange 17 Acres +/-, of Unimproved Land on Harding Road for 445 E. 

Birchwood St., Morton IL. Trustee Newman moved to approve. Motion was seconded by 

Trustee Menold and approved with the following roll call vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman, Kaufman – 6. 

No: None. 

Absent: Parrott – 1. 

 

DPW Loudermilk then presented Resolution 01-21 – A Resolution Authorizing Amendment to 

Pre-Annexation Agreement with Peoria Sand and Gravel, Inc. Trustee Menold moved to 

approve. Motion was seconded by Trustee Blunier and approved with the following roll call 

vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman, Kaufman – 6. 

No: None. 

Absent: Parrott – 1. 

 

VILLAGE TRUSTEES 

BLUNIER – Nothing to report. 

LEITCH – Nothing to report. 

LEMAN – Nothing to report. 

MENOLD – Nothing to report.  

NEWMAN – Nothing to report. 

 

ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

With no action expected to be taken following the executive session for the purpose of 1) 

discussing collective negotiating matters between the Village and its employees or their 

representatives per 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2); 2) discussing the appointment, employment, 

compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body per 

5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1); and 3) discussing the setting of a price for the sale of property owned by the 

Village of Morton, per 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(6). Trustee Leitch moved to adjourn to Executive 

Session. Motion was seconded by Trustee Menold and approved with the following roll call 

vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman – 5. 

No: None. 

Absent: Parrott – 1. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Upon returning from Executive Session, the Clerk determined the same members present.  With 

no further business to come before the Board, Trustee Menold moved to adjourn.  Motion was 

seconded by Trustee Leitch and approved with the following roll call vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman – 5. 

No: None. 

Absent: Parrott – 1. 

 

 

 



 

ATTEST: 

       ____________________________________ 

       PRESIDENT 

 

_______________________________________ 

VILLAGE CLERK 

 



VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

7:00 P.M., JUNE 22, 2020 

 

President Kaufman called the meeting to order and the Clerk called the roll, with the following 

members present:  Blunier, Leitch, Menold, Newman, Parrott – 5.  

 

PRESIDENT KAUFMAN 

President Kaufman requested approval of the appointment of Jason Miller to the position of 

Chief of Police. Trustee Blunier moved to approve. Motion was seconded by Trustee Parrott and 

approved with the following roll call vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Menold, Newman, Parrott – 5. 

No: None. 

Absent: Leman – 1. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business to come before the Board, Trustee Menold moved to adjourn.  Motion 

was seconded by Trustee Leitch and approved with the following roll call vote: 

Yes: Blunier, Leitch, Leman, Menold, Newman – 5. 

No: None. 

Absent: Parrott – 1. 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

       ____________________________________ 

       PRESIDENT 

 

_______________________________________ 

VILLAGE CLERK 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  02-21 

RESOLUTION APPROVING REAL ESTATE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN MORTON COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT  

NO. 709 AND THE VILLAGE OF MORTON 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton and Morton Community Unit School District No. 

709 desire to transfer ownership of land commonly referred to 17 +/- acres of unimproved land 

on Harding Road, Morton, Illinois to the Village of Morton in exchange for transferring 

residential properties commonly known as 530 N. Second Street, 209 E. Harrison Street, 213 E. 

Harrison Street, 217 E. Harrison Street and 221 E. Harrison Street to the School District; and    

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Village a proposed Agreement to be entered 

into between the Village and the School District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES OF THE  

VILLAGE OF MORTON, Tazewell County, Illinois, as follows: 

1. That the Real Estate Exchange Agreement between the Morton Community Unit 

School District and the Village of Morton (the “Agreement”) in the form attached to 

this Resolution is approved. 

2. That the Village President and Village Clerk are authorized and directed to execute 

the Agreement  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall be in full force and effect upon 

its passage and approval.   



PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the President and Board of Trustees 

of the  

Village of Morton, Tazewell County, Illinois, this ________ day of _____________, 2020; and 

upon roll  

call the vote was as follows:  

 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINING 

  

APPROVED this __________ day of __________________, 2020  

 

      _________________________________ 

      President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Village Clerk 

































































ORDINANCE NO.  21-07 

    

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXCHANGE OF 208 E. TYLER ST. FOR 530 

N. SECOND AVE., MORTON IL  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has received and considered a proposal to exchange 

real estate; and  

WHEREAS, 65 ILCS 5/11-76.2-2 requires a ¾ vote to authorize the proposed exchange 

only after a public hearing on the proposal; and   

WHEREAS, an ordinance authorizing a public hearing on a proposal to exchange real 

estate was approved by this Board of Trustees on June 15, 2020 pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-76-

2.1; and  

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing was duly published in the Journal Star, a 

newspaper of general circulation in the Village of Morton, with said notice being not less than 15 

days nor greater than 30 days of the date of the public hearing pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-76-2.3.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON, Tazewell County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1:  The proposed exchange of real estate on the terms and conditions as set 

forth in the Agreements attached hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B are hereby approved.   

SECTION 2:  The Village President and the Village Clerk are hereby authorized and 

directed to execute the Agreements attached hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B and such 

other instruments as may be necessary to effectuate the exchange of real estate approved 

by this Ordinance.  

SECTION 3:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval, 

and publication as may be required by law. 



SECTION 4:  If any section or part of this Ordinance is held invalid, it shall not affect 

the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the President and Board of Trustees 

of the Village of Morton this                    day of __________________ 2020; and upon roll call 

the vote was as follows: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINING: 

 APPROVED this _______ day of ________________________, 2020. 

 

 

        _________________________                                                           

        President  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________                                                              

Village Clerk 

 









































ORDINANCE NO.  21-08 

    

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING EXCHANGE OF 17 ACRES +/- OF UNIMPROVED 

LAND ON HARDING ROAD FOR 445 E. BIRCHWOOD ST., MORTON, IL 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has received and considered a proposal to exchange 

real estate; and  

WHEREAS, 65 ILCS 5/11-76.2-2 requires a ¾ vote to authorize the proposed exchange 

only after a public hearing on the proposal; and   

WHEREAS, an ordinance authorizing a public hearing on a proposal to exchange real 

estate was approved by this Board of Trustees on June 15, 2020 pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-76-

2.1: and  

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing was duly published in the Journal Star, a 

newspaper of general circulation in the Village of Morton, with said notice being not less than 15 

days nor greater than 30 days of the date of the public hearing pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-75.2-3; 

and   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON, Tazewell County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1:  The proposed exchange of real estate on the terms and conditions as set 

forth in the agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved.  

SECTION 2:  The Village President and Village Clerk are hereby authorized and 

directed to execute the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A and such other 

instruments as may be necessary to effectuate the exchange of real estate approved by 

this Ordinance.     



SECTION 3:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval, 

and publication as may be required by law. 

SECTION 4:  If any section or part of this Ordinance is held invalid, it shall not affect 

the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the President and Board of Trustees 

of the Village of Morton this                    day of __________________ 2020; and upon roll call 

the vote was as follows: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINING: 

 APPROVED this _______ day of ________________________, 2020. 

 

 

        _________________________                                                           

        President  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________                                                              

Village Clerk 

 



 

Page 1 of 15 
 

 

 

COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 

made and entered into by and between DAVID J. KNIEP, not individually but as Trustee of the 

David J. Kniep Trust #8248 under trust dated August 4, 1997, (“Kniep),  MORTON RENTALS, 

LLC, an Illinois limited series liability company (“Morton Rentals”), and the VILLAGE OF 

MORTON, an Illinois municipal corporation (“Village”). 

 

WHEREAS, Village desires to acquire certain property owned by Kniep commonly 

known as 445 E. Birchwood Street, Morton, Illinois   61550 (“Birchwood”) for the purpose of 

constructing new facilities for its natural gas utility; and  

 

WHEREAS, Morton Rentals desires to acquire certain property consisting of 17.33 acres, 

more or less, located on Harding Road in the Village of Morton (“Harding”) for the purpose of 

constructing a new 22,500 square foot  building for its business operations; and  

 

WHEREAS, Kniep, Morton Rentals and the Village have reached certain agreements to 

facilitate the aforesaid acquisitions, and desire to memorialize the same in writing hereby.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual conditions and covenants 

hereinafter set forth, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows.     

 

1. Obligations of the Village.  In exchange for the consideration to be provided 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement by Kniep and Morton Rentals, the Village agrees as 

follows: 

a. Village shall pay to Kniep the sum of FOUR HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($450,000.00) at Closing. 

 

b. Village shall undertake good faith efforts to enter into an agreement for the 

acquisition of the Harding property, described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this 

reference made a part hereof, with Morton Unit School District 709, the current owner of the 

property.  In the event the Village is unable to acquire the Harding property on or before July 

15, 2020, this Agreement shall be null and void.  So long as the Village acquires the Harding 

property on or before July 15, 2020, the Village shall convey the Harding property to Morton 

Rentals or its assigns at Closing at no cost to Morton Rentals other than as specified below. 

 

c. Village shall waive all connection tap on fees for utility hookups for Morton 

Rentals construction of a new building on the Harding Road property. 

 

d. Village shall waive all charges for one gas meter, including installation, for 

Morton Rentals construction of a new building on the Harding Road property. 

 

e. Village shall, at Village’s expense, provide to Morton Rentals Five Thousand 

(5,000) tons of road millings to be used for the Harding property construction project.  The 

Village will make the road millings available during the Harding property construction 



 

Page 2 of 15 
 

 

 

project for transportation by Morton Rentals at the Village sewer plant on Fourth Street in the 

Village of Morton.  Transportation of the millings shall be at the expense of Morton Rentals.  

 

f. Village shall, at Village’s expense, install natural gas to the building erected by 

Morton Rentals on the Harding property or four hundred feet (400’) from the property line of 

the Harding property, whichever is less.    

 

g. Village shall, at Village’s expense, provide water service to the property line of 

the Harding property, with the size of the water line being sufficient for the size and intended 

use of the building to be constructed by Morton Rentals.  A curb stop or water valve shall be 

constructed at the property line by the Village. 

 

h. Village shall, at Village’s expense, provide sanitary sewer service to the property 

line of the Harding property, with the size of sanitary sewer line being of sufficient for the 

size and intended use of the building to be constructed by Morton Rentals.  A sanitary 

manhole shall be constructed at the property line by the Village. 

 

i. Village shall run all the aforesaid utilities to the property line bordering Harding 

Road at a point between the Northeast corner of the property and the culvert that runs under 

Harding Road.  For purposes of Paragraph 1 (f), the four hundred feet (400’) shall be 

measured from the property lot line in this area.   

 

j. Village shall, at Village’s expense, annex the Harding property and rezone the 

Harding property to I-2 prior to closing. The Harding property shall be conveyed to Morton 

Rentals with no outstanding annexation fee. Village shall waive all annexation fees and 

development fees for the Harding property.  

 

k. Upon Morton Rentals completing the demolition of Buildings #4 and #5 on or 

before December 31, 2021, the Village shall pay to Morton Rentals the sum of ONE 

HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000.00).  Said sum shall be paid by the Village 

to Morton Rentals within thirty (30) days of the completion of the demolition.   

 

l. At Closing the Village and Morton Rentals shall enter into a lease agreement 

whereunder the Village shall lease to Morton Rentals from the date of Closing through 

December 31, 2021, for no additional consideration, except however Morton Rentals shall be 

responsible for all utilities, the following described property:   

 

i. That part of Building #2 as identified in Exhibit C used as a wash bay. 

ii. All of Buildings #4 and #5 in Exhibit C 

iii. The area behind Buildings #4 and #5 which is to be used as storage       

 

m. In the event Morton Rentals fails to comply with the conditions set forth in 

Paragraph 3(h) and 3(i) of this Agreement, the Village shall pay Morton Rentals the sum of 

Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) in exchange for return of the Harding  

property, with said sum first being applied to any liens or encumbrances against the property, 

secondly to any costs incurred by the Village in fulfilling Morton Rentals’ obligations to 



 

Page 3 of 15 
 

 

 

demolish Buildings #4 and #5, and thirdly to any other sums owed by Morton Rentals to the 

Village resulting from the breach of any of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 

n. Village shall pay all utility hookup fees owed to Peoria Sand & Gravel, Inc. in 

excess of Ten Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) under the terms of a prior 

annexation agreement for the Harding property. 

 

2. Obligations of Kniep.  In exchange for the consideration to be provided pursuant 

to the terms of this Agreement by the Village and Morton Rentals, Kniep agrees as follows: 

 

a. Kniep agrees to convey to the Birchwood property, more particularly described in 

Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to the Village at Closing. 

 

b. Kniep agrees to cooperate with Morton Rentals in the removal of all abandoned, 

disabled, inoperable and junk vehicles and all debris currently located on the Birchwood 

property prior to closing.  Kniep agrees, represents, and warrants that the aforesaid vehicles 

shall be removed from the Village limits. 

 

3. Obligations of Morton Rentals.  In exchange for the consideration to be 

provided pursuant to the terms of this Agreement by the Village and Kniep, Morton Rentals 

agrees as follows: 

 

a. Morton Rentals shall demolish at its expense the building on the Birchwood 

property labeled as Building #3 in Exhibit C on or before Closing.   

 

b. Morton Rentals shall cause to be removed at its expense all abandoned, disabled, 

inoperable and junk vehicles and all debris currently located on the Birchwood property 

before Closing. 

 

c. Morton Rentals shall cause the vehicles described in Paragraph 3b to be removed 

from the Village limits before Closing.   

      

d. Morton Rentals shall demolish at its expense the buildings labeled as Buildings #4 

and #5 in Exhibit C on or before December 31, 2021, or within forty-five (45) days of the 

date Morton Rentals is issued a certificate of occupancy for its new building on the Harding 

property, whichever comes first.   

 

e. Morton Rentals shall demolish Buildings #3, #4 and #5 by completing the 

following steps:  

 

i. Remove all concrete slabs 

ii. Remove all foundations 

iii. Remove all footings 

iv. Remove all debris 

v. fill to grade all depressions and holes caused by demolition 

vi. Otherwise comply with all requirements of the Village demolition 



 

Page 4 of 15 
 

 

 

ordinance 

  

f. Morton Rentals shall be responsible for all costs incurred to complete the 

demolitions of buildings #3, #4 and #5, including the costs of asbestos abatement which is 

necessary prior to demolition.   

 

g. Morton Rentals shall vacate the Birchwood property on or before December 31, 

2021.  

 

h. Morton Rentals shall commence construction of its new building on the Harding 

property on or before July 31, 2021, which building shall be at a minimum 22,500 square feet 

in size. 

 

i. Morton Rentals shall complete construction of its new building on the Harding 

property on or before December 31, 2021. 

 

j. Morton Rentals shall pay Ten Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) to 

Peoria Sand & Gravel, Inc. for utility hookup fees due under the terms of a prior annexation 

agreement for the Harding property.  

 

k. Morton Rentals, or its assigns, agrees not to protest the assessment of the Harding 

property for real estate tax purposes for a period of ten (10) years, commencing with the 

2022 real estate taxes payable in 2023 and continuing through and including the 2032 real 

estate taxes due and payable in 2033, so long as the assessed valuation does not exceed one-

third (1/3) of the total of: (i) the actual costs in constructing the buildings and improvements 

located on the Harding Road property, excluding equipment or items not physically attached 

to the Harding Road property; and (ii) the sum of $250,000, being the agreed upon fair 

market value of the Harding property on the date of closing.   

 

l. In the event Morton Rentals, as a direct result of an act or omission on the part of 

Morton Rentals and absent any act or other cause as specified under the Force Majeure 

provision below, fails to commence construction of a new building on or before July 31, 

2021, or complete construction on or before December 31, 2021, Morton Rentals shall 

transfer title to the Harding property to the Village free and clear of any liens and 

encumbrances, except for the lien of general real estate taxes not yet payable.  

 

4. Common Terms and Conditions for Real Estate Sales.  The following terms 

and conditions shall apply to the real estate sales contemplated by this Agreement:   

 

a. Seller shall furnish Buyer, at Seller's expense, with an up to date commitment for 

title insurance issued by  a reputable title company and reasonably acceptable to Buyer with 

respect to the Property, and title will be conveyed subject only to the following (the 

"Permitted Exceptions"), being the lien of general taxes not yet due; building, use and 

occupancy restrictions, covenants and conditions of record, if any; easements of record, if 

any; and leases of existing tenants in the Property, subject to Buyer's approval as provided 

herein.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Permitted Exception may prevent or unreasonably 



 

Page 5 of 15 
 

 

 

interfere with Buyer's intended use of the Property.  Such title insurance commitment shall be 

delivered to Buyer not later than July 1, 2020.  Buyer shall have until July 15, 2020, to 

examine the title and to make any objections thereto, including objections to any easements, 

restrictions, covenants, conditions or other matters of record, which materially interfere with 

Buyer's intended use of any part of the Property.  Buyer shall submit all such title objections 

to Seller in writing before July 25, 2020.  Any objections to title not made in writing to Seller 

before July 25, 2020, shall be deemed waived by the Buyer.  Seller shall have until the 

Closing Date to cure same.   In the event that Seller cannot cure the objections of Buyer 

before the Closing Date, Buyer may, at its option:  (i) grant Seller additional time to cure the 

objections; or (ii) waive the objections and accept title as is; or (iii) elect to terminate this 

Agreement and receive back Buyer's earnest money. 

 

b. Closing shall take place in escrow at the offices of the title company unless 

otherwise agreed to by the parties.  In no event, however, shall the disbursement of any sale 

proceeds be made until after the title insurer makes a final search of the title and records all 

of the documents necessary to place insurable fee simple title to the Property in the Buyer.  

Closing of this transaction shall be held on or before July 30, 2020, unless otherwise agreed 

to in writing by both Seller and Buyer.   

 

c. At Closing, Seller shall deliver, or cause to be delivered to Buyer, the following, 

each of which shall be in form and substance acceptable to counsel for Buyer and, in the case 

of documents of transfer or conveyance, shall be accepted or consented to by all parties 

required to make such transfer or conveyance effective: 

 

i. A recordable Warranty Deed from Seller to Buyer subject only to the 

Permitted Exceptions; 

 

ii. Seller shall prepare and cause to be delivered to Buyer and Seller will 

execute a Seller's Affidavit, approved by Buyer’s attorney prior to the date 

of closing;  

 

iii. A written certification ("FIRPTA Certificate") in form reasonably 

satisfactory to Buyer and dated no earlier than ten (10) days prior to the 

date of Closing, which certification shall be in compliance with The Tax 

Reform Act of 1984 (the "Act") and the regulations thereunder that are 

imposed by the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act ("FIRPTA") 

and certifying that Seller is not a person or entity subject to withholding 

under FIRPTA and the Act, and containing Seller's tax identification 

number and address.  

 

iv. State of Illinois and County of Tazewell documentary stamp and 

transaction declarations. 

 

d. At the Closing, Buyer shall cause to be delivered to Seller: 

 

i. that portion of the Purchase Price required to be paid pursuant to Section 2 



 

Page 6 of 15 
 

 

 

hereof; and 

ii. such other and further documents required by the title insurance company 

or reasonably necessary to close the transaction.   

 

e. Seller and Buyer will, at the Closing, or at any time or from time to time 

thereafter, upon request of either party, execute such additional instruments, documents or 

certificates as either party deems reasonably necessary in order to convey, assign and transfer 

the Property to Buyer hereunder. 

 

f. Possession of the Property shall be delivered to Buyer at Closing.  Possession of 

the Birchwood property shall be subject to the tenancy of Morton Rentals, as provided for 

herein.  Possession of the Harding property shall be subject to the tenancy of the existing 

farm tenant, whose lease rights shall be terminated effective upon the end of the current lease 

term prior to Closing.  The Village shall provide to Morton Rentals or its assigns proof of 

termination of such farm tenancy prior to closing. 

 

g. If, prior to the delivery of the deed hereunder, any improvements on the Property, 

shall be destroyed or materially damaged by fire or other casualty which cannot be replaced 

or repaired by Seller prior to closing with improvements substantially identical to those 

existing prior to the casualty, Buyer shall have the option of declaring this Agreement null 

and void and receiving a refund of the earnest money paid hereunder, or of accepting the 

Property as destroyed or damaged together with the proceeds of any insurance payable as a 

result of the destruction or damage, in which latter case the Seller shall assign such insurance 

proceeds to the Buyer. 

 

h. Seller hereby expressly warrants to Buyer that on the date hereof and as of closing 

(unless otherwise disclosed by Seller to Buyer in writing prior to closing and accepted by 

Buyer): 

i. that Seller has not received any notice of any pending eminent domain 

proceedings against all or any part of the Property; 

 

ii. that Seller has not received any notices relating to fire, zoning, building, 

environmental or health violations with respect to the Property; that there 

are no suits or judgments relating to fire, zoning, building, environmental 

or health violations with respect to the Property which are actually known 

to Seller nor are there any existing conditions actually known to Seller 

which could form the basis of any such suit or judgment; nor are there any 

threats thereof which are actually known to Seller; 

 

iii. that there are no outstanding contracts to purchase, except with Buyer, 

options to purchase or rights of first refusal with respect to the Property 

which have not been waived;  

 

iv. that other than lease agreements there are no management, maintenance, 

service or other contracts affecting the Property at time of closing that 

cannot be lawfully terminated by the Seller or Buyer within thirty (30) 



 

Page 7 of 15 
 

 

 

days of closing 

 

i. The Buyer shall be afforded a due diligence period through July 15, 2020, during 

which Buyer or its representatives shall be afforded reasonable access to the Property in 

order to inspect the same for compliance with the terms hereof.  Buyer's obligation to close 

this transaction is expressly subject to and conditioned upon, but not limited to, all of the 

following: 

 

i. Buyer performs a physical inspection of the Property and all 

improvements thereon, at Buyer's sole expense, and Buyer concludes in its 

opinion that such property and/or improvements are acceptable to Buyer; 

 

ii. Buyer, at its option and expense, performs an environmental inspection of 

the Property, including but not limited to testing for asbestos, mold, radon, 

formaldehyde and other environmental defects, the findings of which are 

in its opinion acceptable to Buyer; 

 

iii. Buyer determines that the zoning classification of the Property permits the 

present use of the property.  

 

iv. Buyer performs such physical inspections, and such financial, business 

and economic analyses as it deems appropriate to evaluate the feasibility 

and advisability of purchasing the Property as it relates to its short- and 

long-term business plans, and Buyer concludes in its opinion that the 

purchase is both feasible and advisable.  Seller shall cooperate with Buyer 

and shall make available to Buyer rent rolls, utility bills and building 

repair and maintenance expenses;  

 

v. Buyer, at its option and expense, obtains a satisfactory termite report on 

the Property. 

 

vi. Buyer, at its option and expense, obtains soil borings, the results of which 

reflect the subsurface condition of the Property as being suitable for 

Buyer’s intended use thereof. 

 

j. In connection with the Buyer's contingencies set forth above, if Buyer informs 

Seller on or before July 25, 2020, that any of the above conditions precedent have not been 

satisfied, in Buyer's sole discretion, this Agreement will terminate without any liability of 

Buyer to Seller, and Buyer shall be entitled to an immediate full refund of Buyer's earnest 

money deposit (except for the cost of the Title Commitment, which shall be deducted 

therefrom).  If Buyer does not timely notify Seller in writing in each instance with respect to 

each contingency of Buyer's intent to terminate on the basis of any of these conditions 

precedent to Buyer's obligation to complete the purchase hereunder, then such conditions are 

waived and Buyer shall accept the premises in "AS IS" condition without warranty except as 

specifically set forth elsewhere in this Agreement. 

 



 

Page 8 of 15 
 

 

 

k. Buyer agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and hold Seller and its officers, 

directors, employees, agents and their successors or assigns and their property harmless from 

all costs, damages, liens and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), including those 

to the person and property of the Buyer, its employees, agents, invitees, licensees and others 

arising out of or in connection with the performance of any inspection, work or activity by 

Buyer or Buyer's contractors or agents in or about the Property necessitated by the inspection 

activities by Buyer or Buyer's contractors. This agreement of indemnification shall apply and 

survive any termination of this Agreement by Buyer for any reason other than default by 

Seller. 

 

l. All title work expense, state and city revenue stamps and recording fees on all 

instruments required to clear title shall be paid in full by Seller at or before closing.  The 

recording fees on the deeds conveying title to Buyer shall be paid by Buyer. 

 

m. Buyer is purchasing the Property in “AS IS” condition.  Seller makes no 

warranties as to the condition of the Property or the plumbing, heating, electrical, air 

conditioning systems or appliances included as part of the purchase price.   

 

n. All real estate taxes, charges and assessments affecting the Property shall be 

prorated on a per diem basis as of midnight of the Closing Date.  If any of the same have not 

been finally assessed or payable as of the date of Closing of the taxing authority, then the 

same shall be adjusted at Closing based upon the most currently available information.  

 

o. Utility charges shall be prorated as follows:  No proration of utility charges shall 

be necessary for the Harding property since such property is unimproved.  Morton Rentals 

shall be responsible for all utility charges incurred for the Birchwood property until such time 

as Morton Rentals vacates possession of such premises entirely, except however the Village 

shall be responsible for all stormwater utility charges for the Birchwood property from and 

after the Closing.  The parties acknowledge that a portion of the electricity Morton Rentals 

pays on a monthly basis shall be for portions of the leased premises which the Village 

possess.  The Village is assuming stormwater utility charges for the entirety of the 

Birchwood property as consideration for the electric utility charges which Morton Rentals 

shall pay for electricity at the Birchwood property utilized by the Village. 

 

p. The transferor of each parcel referenced herein shall also be referred to as “Seller” 

and the transferee shall be referred to as “Buyer 

 

5.       Default.  If any party does not perform any obligation under this Agreement (a  

default), the non-defaulting party shall give written notice of the default to the defaulting party.  If 

the defaulting party does cure the default within ten (10) days of the notice, the non-defaulting party 

may pursue any remedy available at law or equity, including specific performance.  The successful 

party to any litigation caused by a default shall be entitled to be reimbursed for its expenses and 

costs of litigation, including reasonable attorney’s fees and shall be entitled to a judgment against 

the unsuccessful party to the litigation.   

 

6. Damage Prior to Closing.  If, prior to delivery of the Kniep deed hereunder, any 



 

Page 9 of 15 
 

 

 

improvements on the Birchwood property deeds hereunder, any improvements thereon shall be 

destroyed or materially damaged by fire or other casualty which cannot be replace or repaired by 

Kniep prior to Closing with improvements substantially identical to those existing prior to the 

casualty, the Village shall have the option of declaring this Agreement null and void, or of 

accepting the Birchwood property as destroyed or damaged together with the proceeds of any 

insurance payable as a result of the destruction or damage, in which latter case Kniep shall assign 

such insurance proceeds to the Village.     

 

7. Survival and Indemnification.   All representations, warranties, covenants, 

agreements, and indemnities in this Agreement shall survive the Closing without limitations. 

 

8. Merger. The representations and warranties contained herein shall survive the 

Closing and not be merged in the deeds to be delivered hereunder. 

 

9. Inspection Indemnification.  Any party that performs any inspections as allowed 

hereunder agrees to protect, indemnify and hold the then owner of the inspected property and 

their officers, directors, employees, agents and their successors or assigns and their property 

harmless from all costs, damages, liens and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), 

arising out of or in connection with the performance of any inspection, work or activity by any 

party or the contractors or agents engaged by any party to conduct said inspections. This 

agreement of indemnification shall apply and survive any termination of this Agreement by any 

party for any reason other than a default by the party.     

 

10. Additional Documents and Actions.  Each of the parties agree to execute any 

and all other documents or documentation as may be reasonably necessary to effectuate the 

intent hereof and to complete the performance of the covenants contained herein. 

 

11. Applicable Law.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties 

hereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois, without reference to the principles of 

conflict of laws of such state. 

 

12. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto, and to their respective successors, except that Morton Rentals may 

only assign its rights under this Agreement to a successor company of which the majority 

ownership is comprised of members of Morton Rentals, LLC, said members’ spouses or their 

Grantor Trusts.  No other party to this Agreement may assign their rights. 

 

13. Notices.  Title commitments, communications and any notices required to be 

given pursuant to this Agreement shall be delivered to the party’s attorney or to the party if not 

represented by counsel.  Any notice shall be given in writing in one of the following ways:  (i) by 

personal delivery to the party or attorney; (ii) by U.S. mail, with postage prepaid, addressed to 

the party or attorney at the address set forth below; (iii) be express delivery to the party or 

attorney at the address set forth below, with charges prepaid.    

 

 If to Village of Morton: McGrath Law Office, P.C.   

     1600 S. Fourth Street, Suite 137 



 

Page 10 of 15 
 

 

 

     Morton, Illinois   61550 

  

 If to David J. Kniep:  Benckendorf & Benckendorf, P.C. 

     100 N. Main Street 

     Morton, Illinois   61550 

 

 

 If to Morton Rentals, Inc. Benckendorf & Benckendorf, P.C. 

     100 N. Main Street 

     Morton, Illinois   61550 

 

14. Waiver or Modification.  This Agreement may be amended, modified, 

superseded, or canceled, and any of the terms, covenants, representations, warranties or 

conditions hereof may be waived, only by a written instrument executed by the parties hereto, or 

in the case of a waiver or consent, by or on behalf of the party or parties waiving compliance or 

giving such consent.  The failure of any party at any time or times to require performance of any 

provision hereof shall in no manner affect its right at a later time to enforce the same.  No waiver 

by any party of any condition, or of any breach of any covenant, agreement, representation, or 

warranty contained in this Agreement, in any on or more instances, shall be deemed to be or 

constructed as a further or continuing waiver of any such covenant, agreement, representation, or 

warranty.   

 

15. Descriptive Headings.  The descriptive headings of the several articles and 

sections contained in this Agreement are included for convenience only and shall not control or 

affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof.   

 

16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits hereto, constitutes 

the entire agreement among the parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all 

prior and contemporaneous agreements and understanding of the parties in connection therewith.  

No covenant, representation, or condition not expressed in this Agreement shall be binding upon 

the parties hereto or shall affect or be effective to interpret, change, or restrict the provisions of 

this Agreement.   

 

17. Invalid Provisions.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, 

invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be fully severable, and this Agreement shall be 

construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised 

a part hereof; and the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect 

and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision or by its severance 

from this Agreement.   

 

18. Construction.  The parties acknowledge that each party and its counsel have 

reviewed, commented on and approved this Agreement, and the rule of construction providing 

that ambiguities within the Agreement are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be 

employed in the interpretation of this Agreement.  

 

19. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,  



 

Page 11 of 15 
 

 

 

each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute but one and 

the same instrument.   

 

20. Further Assurances.  All parties will at the Closing or at any time or from time 

to time thereafter, upon request of any other party, execute such additional instruments, 

documents or certificates as either party deems reasonably necessary in order to convey the 

properties herein.   

 

 

21. Deadlines.  Any deadline in this Agreement which falls on a Saturday, Sunday or  

legally recognized State of Illinois or federal holiday shall be extended to the next business day. 

 

22. Force Majeure.   If the performance of this Agreement, or of any obligation 

hereunder is prevented, restricted or interfered with by reason of lightning, earthquake or other 

act of God, act of terrorism, war, riot, explosion, accident, flood or sabotage, lack of or inability 

to obtain adequate fuel, raw materials, labor, or transportation facilities, excessive demand for 

any products over the supply available to or the manufacturing capacity of the producing 

company, any interruption for any reason in the manufacture of the products, including breakage 

or failure of machinery or apparatus; labor problems, strike, lockout or injunction, delays in 

shipment or customs clearance, embargoes, government ordinances or requirements, civil or 

military authorities, acts or omissions of carriers, inability to obtain necessary materials or 

services from suppliers, power outages or brownouts, or mechanical, electronic or 

communications failures, government ordered shut-down or shelter in place order, pandemic, or 

other causes beyond the reasonable control of the party whose performance is affected 

(excluding financial condition, negligence or willful misconduct), then the party affected, upon 

giving prompt notice to the other party, as set forth in the section titled Notices, shall be excused 

from such performance on a day-for-day basis to the extent of such prevention, restriction or 

interference (and the other party will likewise be excused from performance of its obligation on a 

day-for-day basis to the extent such party’s obligations relate to the performance so prevented, 

restricted or interfered with); provided that the party so affected shall use reasonable efforts to 

avoid or remove such causes of nonperformance and both parties shall proceed to perform their 

obligations with dispatch whenever such causes or removed or cease. 

 

23. Effective Date.  For all purposes hereof, this Agreement shall be deemed 

effective on the date last signed by a party hereto.   

 

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals to this 

Agreement, made effective as of the last date this instrument is signed. 

 

VILLAGE OF MORTON, an Illinois municipal corporation 

 

 

By:  ________________________________ 

 President 

 



 

Page 12 of 15 
 

 

 

 

Attest:  _____________________________ 

     Village Clerk       

 

 

DATED:  ___________________________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

DAVID J. KNIEP TRUST #8248 DATED AUGUST 4, 1997 

 

 

By:  ________________________________ 

 David J. Kniep, Trustee  

 

 

DATED:  ___________________________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

MORTON RENTALS, LLC, an Illinois series limited liability company 

 

 

BY:  _______________________________ 

 Bradley D. Kniep, Its Manager  

 

 

DATED:  ___________________________, 2020. 

  



 

Page 13 of 15 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

A PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP-25-NORTH, 

RANGE-3-WEST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, TAZEWELL COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS.  MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 

SAID SECTION 16; THENCE S 88 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 

(BEARINGS ARE FOR DESCRIPTION PURPOSE ONLY) A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 31 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 

824.61 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF RAILROAD; 

THENCE SOUTH 45 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 56 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID 

NORTHERLY RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 1019.66 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING; 

 

FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE (THE FOLLOWING 3 COURSES ARE 

ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE) SOUTH 44 DEGREES 

33 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 600.13 FEET; THENCE IN A 

SOUTHWESTERLY DIRECTION ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST 

HAVING A RADIUS OF 800.00 FEET AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 662.28 FEET, BEING 

SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 68 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 11 

SECONDS WEST, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 643.53; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 05 

MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 106.57 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 

DEGREES 56 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 250.00 FEET: THENCE 

NORTH 88 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 200.00 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 

211.25 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HARDING ROAD; 

THENCE (THE FOLLOWING 2 COURSES ARE ALONG SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF HARDING ROAD) IN A NORTHEASTERLY DIRECTION ALONG A 

CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST HAVING A RADIUS OF 832.48 FEET AND 

AN ARC LENGTH OF 300.69 FEET BEING SUBTENDED BY A CHORD BEARING OF 

NORTH 42 DEGREES 01 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 

299.06 FEET; THENCE NORTH 31 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST, A 

DISTANCE OF 177.34 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 13 SECONDS 

EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1008.87 FEET, CONTAINING 17.71 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

 

PIN:  06-06-16-200-017 

  



 

Page 14 of 15 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

 

P.I.N. 06-06-20-243-019 

 

A part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 20, Township 25 North, Range 3 West of the Third 

Principal Meridian, the Village of Morton, Tazewell County, Illinois, more fully described as 

follows:  Beginning at a point 30 feet West and 33.5 feet North of the Southeast corner of said 

Northeast Quarter, being the Northwest corner of Roth Street and Fourth Avenue; then 2°57’ 

East along the Westerly right of way of Fourth Avenue a distance of 89.35 feet to the Southerly 

right of way line of the Illinois Terminal Railroad; thence North 43°36’33” West along said 

railroad right of way line distance of 537.69 feet; thence South 38°27’25” West a distance of 

93.98 feet; thence North 72°52’50” feet; West a distance of 90.23 feet; thence North 64°26’30” 

West a distance of 52.20; thence North 58°14’30” West a distance of 46.41 feet; thence South 

36°55’00” West a distance of 128.49 feet; thence South 37°06’00” East a distance of 469.6 feet; 

thence South 89°43’00” East a parallel to the South line of said Northeast Quarter of Section 20 

a distance of 391.8 feet to the point of beginning. 

 

Commonly known as 445 E. Birchwood, Morton, Illinois   61550   

  



 

Page 15 of 15 
 

 

 

Exhibit C 

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  03-21 

 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING JASON MILLER TO THE GOVERNING BOARD PURSUANT 

TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT CONSOLIDATING TO TAZEWELL 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 

 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Morton entered into a certain Intergovernmental Agreement for the 

purpose of creating the Tazewell Consolidated Communications Center on September 26, 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Village Board of the Village of Morton adopt a resolution  

pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement to appoint one member to the Governing Board to succeed 

retired Chief Craig Hilliard, who was formerly appointed on behalf of the Village of Morton to the 

Governing Board; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village Board desires to appoint Chief Jason Miller to succeed retired Chief 

Craig Hilliard to the Governing Board on behalf of the Village of Morton.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON, Tazewell County, Illinois, as follows: 

1. That Chief Jason Miller be appointed to the Governing Board of the Tazewell Consolidated 

Communications Center on behalf of the Village of Morton; 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 

of Morton, Tazewell County, Illinois, this            day of   _________, 2020; and upon roll call the 

vote was as follows: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINING: 

 APPROVED this                 day of     , 2020. 

 

 

                                                    

        President 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                                

Village Clerk 



 

1 

 

 
ESTIMATE 

 

Date:             June 30th, 2020 

Customer:       Village of Morton 

Attention:        Craig Loudermilk, P.E. 

Phone:             309-266-5361 (Ext. 223) 

Email:  cloudermilk@morton-il.gov 
 
Job site:       Harrison Street & 2nd Avenue 
 
Job details: Demolish various homes (includes prevailing wages)   

Demolish (4) homes on Harrison Street (includes tree & root ball removal) 

Address’s: 209 Harrison St., 213 Harrison St., 217 Harrison St., 221 Harrison St. 

           

        Total Estimate $62,300.00 

 

Demolish (1) home on 2nd Avenue (includes tree and root ball removal) 

Address: 530 North 2nd Avenue 

 

        Total Estimate $15,500.00 

 

Notes: 

Demo’s include removing homes, patio’s/porches, driveways, garages, and fencing, etc. 

 

Does not include backfilling demo sites or asbestos inspections/removal 

 

Does not include filling the existing cisterns on the property 

 

Sewer and water disconnects will be capped at the property edge (Village will assist with 

disconnects per Craig Loudermilk) 

 

Village of Morton will take care of gas and water disconnects 

 

Wayne Litwiller Excavating, Inc. is not responsible for damage or repair fees to any private utility 
located on the property that is not a part of J.U.L.I.E. Inc.  
 
Price does not include any replacement of landscaping or grass on property. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to quote.  For follow-up contact us by email: wlitexc@yahoo.com 



 

 

AGENDA 

PLAN COMMISSION OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON, ILLINOIS 

7:00 P.M. 

MONDAY, JUNE 22, 2020 

This will be a remote only meeting through Zoom.  

The link to join the Zoom meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83370215644    

 The dial-in option: 1 312 626 6799.  Meeting ID: 833 7021 5644# 

 

 

 

I.  Call to Order / Roll Call 

 

II.  Approval of Minutes        Regular Meeting – May 26, 2020 

 

III.  Public Hearing(s):   

Case No. 20-02 ZA: Subject property is located at SEC 29 T25N R3W STP SUBD #1 

LOT 1 in the Village of Morton. A petition has been filed by LeRoy Lindwood Jr. and 

Steve Lehman. They are requesting a zoning change from R-2 to R-4. 

 

Case No. 20-03 ZA:  Subject property is located at SEC 16 T25N R3W TRACT A-7 

(EXC SWLY 1.66 AC TRACT) NE 1/4 17.33 AC in the Village of Morton. A petition 

has been filed by The Village of Morton. They are requesting a zoning change from B-3 

to I-2. 

 

Case No. 20-04 ZA:  Subject property is located at SEC 28 T25N R3W NW 1/4 (EXC 

LOT A & EXC ROW) OF NW 1/4 33.88 AC in the Village of Morton. A petition has 

been filed by Steve Lehman and Kenneth Baum. They are requesting a zoning change 

from R-1/R-4 to R-4. 

 

IV.  Other Business:   

  None 

 

V.  Brad Marks: 

             

VI.  Adjourn 
 

 

 



                                                  
       

                                                MORTON PLAN COMMISSION 

                                                       MINUTES-JUNE 22, 2020 
 
 
 
The Plan Commission met on Monday, June 22, 2020, at 7:00 P.M. The meeting was conducted 
through Zoom. Chairman Ferrill presiding. Present: Ritterbusch, Ferrill, Smock, Zobrist, Fick, 
Keach, Knepp, Geil and Deweese. Also, in attendance: Zoning Officer Brad Marks, Trustee 
Rod Blunier and Attorney Pat McGrath. 
 
Ritterbusch made a motion to approve the minutes from the May 26, 2020 meeting. Knepp 
seconded the motion to approve. This was followed by a vote to approve. The May 26, 2020 
minutes were approved. 
 

Public Hearing(s):  
Petition No. 20-02 ZA: Subject property is located at SEC 29 T25N R3W STP SUBD #1 
LOT 1 in the Village of Morton. A petition was filed by LeRoy Lindwood Jr. and Steve Lehman. 
Mr. Lindwood Jr. and Mr. Lehman are requesting a zoning change from R-2 to R-4. Mr. 
Lehman, as the petitioner, presented the case for rezoning.  After much public comment and 
discussion from the Planning Commission members, a motion to table Petition No. 20-02 ZA 
was made by Deweese. A second to table was made by Ritterbusch. This was followed by a vote 
to table Petition No. 20-02 ZA. 
 
Yes-Knepp, Fick, Ritterbusch, Geil, Smock, Ferrill, Zobrist, Keach and Deweese 
No-None 
 
Petition No. 20-02 ZA: Tabled  
 
Petition No. 20-03 ZA: Subject property is located at SEC 16 T25N R3W TRACT A-7 
(EXC SWLY 1.66 AC TRACT) NE 1/4 17.33 AC in the Village of Morton. A petition 
was filed by The Village of Morton. The Village of Morton is requesting a zoning change from 
B-3 to I-2. Craig Loudermilk representing the petitioner presented the case for rezoning. With no 
discussion, a motion to approve Petition 20-03 ZA was made by Ritterbusch. A second to 
approve Petition No. 20-03 ZA was made by Zobrist. This was followed by a vote to approve 
Petition No. 20-03 ZA. 
 
Yes-Knepp, Fick, Ritterbusch, Deweese, Zobrist, Geil, Ferrill and Keach 
No-None 
Abstain-Smock 
 
Petition No. 20-03 ZA: Approved 
 
Petition No. 20-04 ZA: Subject property is located at SEC 28 T25N R3W NW 1/4 (EXC 
LOT A & EXC ROW) OF NW 1/4 33.88 AC in the Village of Morton. A petition was filed by 
Steve Lehman and Kenneth Baum. Mr. Lehman and Mr. Baum are requesting a zoning change 
that would change the zoning on two separate areas of this parcel. The dimensions of these two 
locations are 192’x374’ each.  Mr. Lehman, as the petitioner, presented the case for rezoning. 



                                                  
       

There were numerous comments and questions from the public. After much discussion from the 
Planning Commission, a motion to approve Petition No. 20-04 ZA was made by Fick. A second 
to approve Petition No. 20-04 ZA as illustrated on the attached site plan was made by 
Ritterbusch. This was followed by a vote to approve Petition No. 20-04 ZA as illustrated on the 
attached site plan. 
 
Yes-Knepp, Fick, Ritterbusch, Smock, Geil, Zobrist, Ferrill and Keach 
No-Deweese 
 
Approved 
 
Other Business: None 
    
Brad Marks:  Nothing 
 
With no further business, Ritterbusch made a motion to adjourn. A second to adjourn was made 
by Knepp. There was a unanimous approval to adjourn. 












	1-Agenda - VB  7-6-20
	2-Minutes VB 6-15-20
	3-Minutes VB 6-22-20 SP
	4-02-21 Resolution w Attachment - Exchange Agreement w District 709
	02-21 Resolution - Exchange Agreement w District 709
	02-21 Resolution Attachment - Exchange Agreement w District 709

	5-Ordinance 21-07 w Attachment - Exchange 208 E Tyler for 530 N Second
	Ordinance 21-07 - Exchange 208 E Tyler for 530 N Second
	Ordinance 21-07 Attachment - Exchange 208 E Tyler for 530 N Second

	6-Ordinance 21-08 w Attachment - Purchase Agreement - 17 Acres Harding Rd - 445 E. Birchwood
	Ordinance 21-08 - Exchange 17 Acres Harding Rd for 445 E Birchwood
	Ordinance 21-08 Attachment - Purchase Agreement - 17 Acres Harding Rd - 445 E. Birchwood

	7-03-21 Resolution - Resolution Appointing Jason Miller to TCCC govering board
	8-Litwiller Demo Proposal
	9-Zoning Amendment Petition #20-03 ZA
	PC Agenda Com_6222020
	PC Min_06222020
	Case # 20-03 ZA


